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1ea 1 forward. 1209 1 Okay. All right. ‘Overruled. It's being offered not
1185 2 MR. CHU: Okay. Thank you, your Honor. I'll move 12102 2 for the truth of the matter, but rather as to its effect on
111816 3 on. 12004 3 the listener. -

“qus2e 4 BY MR, CHU: 12105 -4 MR. CHU: " Absolutely. Thank you, your Honor.
12 B Q. Steve, does USA make any integrated cards where the 1m2112 B BY MR. CHU:
11832 6  adhesive —- I'm sorry. Strike that. 11:21:12 76 Q. Steve, what was it that you heard Brian Wooley tell you?
11887 T Are all of USA's integrated cards designed to be R MR. SCHROER: Objection --
111838 8 signature compatible? 12117 8 THE WITNESS: Brian Wooley was telling me that John
11e41 9 A Yes. ' 1211 -9 McKillip had framed a $5,000 check that I had paid him from
meso 10 Q. Steve, cﬁd you understand at any time prior to this - 12124 107 the first'patent -- time he sued me, and then Brian was --
111855 11 lawsuit that John, or anyone else had a patent on integrated 12130 11 well, T was saying, Well, that was for patent settlement. And
111006 12 ° cards? 112133 12 he said -- proceeded to tell me that John had another patent
111006 13 A. Yes, I -- yes, I did. 1zrar 13 for integrated cards, meaning referring to the '488 patent.
111008 14 Q. And how did you know this? 11:21:43 1_4 BY MR. CHU:
111 15 A. I saw this patent hanging on the wall of his building, 12143 15 Q. How did you know he was referring to the '488 patent?
11915 16 first off. 12148 16 A, Well, he said it was for integrated cards.
11:19:16 17‘ Q. Whose building? 12150 17 © Q. Do you know approximately what year this was?
11916 18 A. John McKillip's building when Tri-Graphics was being s12t5¢ 18 . A. That Brian Wooley heard this? I think it was -- I don't
11924 19 auctioned -- the assets of Tri-Graphics were being auctioned, na2rss 19 - remember.
11920 20 this patent and another patent were on display at his company. | 11215 20 Q. No. I'm talking about when you heard it from Brian
11193¢ 1 1 saw those. 120 21 Wooley.
111036 22 I heard the auctioneer describe this patent and offer 112200 22 A. Oh. Oh, my God.
111941 23 it for sale at the -- 122 23 I don't. I think it was in the '90s, late '90s.
Car1eas 24 Q. This patent being the ... 112213 24 Q. Thank you.
11045 25 A '488 patent, I'm sorry. 112216 2D Did you hear that from anyone else?
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11ear 1 Q. Thank you. 1zws 1 A. Yes. Iheard it from Chuck Casagrande that John McKillip
111948 2 A. '488 patent. 12222 2 . had a patent on integrated cards.

111948 3 1 also was informed of this by Brian Wooley. 12227 3 Q. Who'is Chuck Casagrande?
111955 4 Q. Who's Brian Wooley? 112231 4 . A. He's the owner of -- I can't think of the name of the
11gs7 B A, Brian Wooley was a press operator for John McKillip and 12228 B company right now, but ...
112002 6  had worked for USA also. 12245 © Q. Is he involved in your industry?
12007 T Q. And how did you learn this from him? 12246 1 A. Yes, 6h, yes, yes.
112000 8 A. He was at my company and was -- well, frankly, he was 1mezar 8 Q. Okay. And what occasion did you hear this from him?-
112016 9 commenting how John had framed -- 1nzso 9 A, Weé were just mentioning -- he had been granted a patent on
112018 10 MR. SCHROER: Objection to the hearsay. 1izss 10 a product and he mentioned to me that John McKillip had ailso
112010 11 THE COURT: Sustained. 112260 11 gotten a patent on integrated cards.
112021 12 THE WITNESS: Don't answer? 12x2 12 Q. Do you remember what year this was that you heard this
112022 13 THE COURT: You may not answer when I've sustained 112300 13~ from him?
112027 14 the objection. You have ta rephrase. 112305 14 . A. That was in the 1990s also.
112020 15 BY MR. CHU: 1nz312 15 Q. Thank you.
1203 16 Q. Steve, what did you hear Mr. Wooley tel‘l you? 112313 16 Let's turn back to the auction for a second.
112032 17 MR. SCHROER: Objection, hearsay. 112018 17 You said the auction was for -- can you please
112004 18 THE COURT: What is it being offered for? 112319 18 explain again what the auction was for?
112095 19 MR. CHU: It's being offered for ~- not for the fact 112320 19 A. It was selling the assets of Tri-Graphics.
12038 20" that - well, it's for what Mr. McKillip understood, but what 123 20 Q. And what was Tri-Graphics?
izoae 21 Mr McKillip heard from Brian Wooley. 11:23:29 21 A. TriflGraphics was a company that was owned by John :
112040 22 THEVCOURT: Regarding what? 12332 22 MeKillip, Bbb VanHyfte, Stan Stack, and one other gentieman
112050 23 MR. CHU: I'm sorry. Regardirig whether someone told 112397 23 whose name I don't Femember now.
112055 24 him that there was a patent. 112344 24 ° Q.- Do you recall when the auction was?
112057 25 THE COURT: That there was a patent. 112352 25 A, No. I think that was in 19- -- it was in the 1990s again.
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112414 1 MR. CHU: Your Honor, I've just handed defendant -- 1z 1 sue you under the '488 patent?
12417 2 I'm sorry -~ I just handed Steve Defendant's Exhibit No. 19 in 12648 2 A. Did they what?
112420 3 your book. ) 4 124 3 Q. Did they threaten you with a lawsuit?

Ctzem 4 THE COURT: Okay. nzs 4 A. No.
112424 B BY MR. CHU: 12651 -8 Q. Did anybody regarding -- thank you.
12425 6 Q. Steve, do you recognize Exhibit 19 that I just handed you? 112109 6 Steve, did you believe that you might get sued for
1242 T A. Yes. ttoraz T infringement of the '488 patent at any'time that you spoke
112428 8 Q. What does this relate to? 112714 - 8 ' with any of these individuals over the years?
112431 9 A. This relates to the auction at Tri-Graphics and American e 9 A No. -
112438 10 Stencil, and that was in 1997. 12r2s 10 Q. why?.
112¢20 11~ Q. Okay. And this was the same aucfion that you just 1zrzr 11 MR. SCHROER: Objection, relevance.
12442 12 described? 7 112728 12 THE COURT: It's not relevant. Sustained.
12442 13~ A. Yes. 1zr2e 13 MR. CHU: Thank you, your Honor. I'll move on.
112444 14 Q. Can you please describe to me how the auction related to 112746 14 BY MR. CHU:
112448 18 the '488 patent? 12z 18 Q. Steve, based on your testimony, you said you've heard
11:24:49' 16 A. Well, I went to the auction. The '488 patent, along with 12749 16 - about the '488 patent at Iéast from Brian Wooley in the '90s,
112453 17~ another patent, was on displéy there. And the auctioneer also 112754 17 at the auction in the '90s, and Chuck Casagrande in the '90s?
112503 18  offered it up for auction. 1201 18 . A. Yes. ) )
mzsor 19 Q. Okay. Did you see the '488 patent with your own eyes? e 19 Q. At any time did you understand from any of these
1nzs0 20 A, Yes, 1 did. . 12e10 20 discussions or hearing this that it was possible that -- I'm
m2s16 21 Q. And you said the auctioneer -- 12815 21 - sorry -- that you might get sued for infringement for the '488
1as16 22 A. Offered it up -- offered up the '488 patent for auction. 12818 22 patent?
12520 23+ Q. Did the auctioneer say anything about the patent? 12818 23 MR. SCHROER: Objection, relevance.
12522 24 A. Yes. He described it -~ he described it as -~ just as 11:2819 24 THE COURT: Sustained. It's not -- whether he
1227 28 it's read -- as it's described right here on the patent. And 112823 25 believed he'd be sued is really not relevant to the issue of
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112530 1 - Vhe said, United States patent, gave the number, the uzs26 ‘1 whether or not their client delayed in bringing the suit. His
1253 2 description, and offered it for bid and with an opening bid. 112830 2 knowledge of whether he thought he'd be sued really isn't
1253 3 Q. Is your‘dnderstanding it's the same patent as -- f2em 3 relevant.
112541 -4 A, Oh, yes. 12832 4 MR. CHU: " Your Honor, with respect to estoppel,
12542 -5 Q. -- Plaintiff's Exhibit 1? soes B there's a reliance requirement, so I'm trying to establish
112543 - 6 Did anyone bid for it at the auction? 12840 6 . that Steve had understood this and he was ...
12545 . 7 A. Nobody, not one person. Vizeas T THE COURT: Well, that's a different question then,
12550 8 Q. Okay. Did you speak with -- or was John at this auction? 12647 8  not really whether he believed he'd be sued. It's whether he
i2ssa 9 A, Yes, he was. 12851 9 relied on the fact that no one had brought that to his
12554 10 Q. Did you speak with him at all? 112854 10 attention that he would be sued. All right. It's also
i2555 11 A. Yes, just briefly. I shook hands with him, asked him how 112857 11 spechlation.
12600 12 he was doing, and he juth said fine and made a comment about | 112001 12  BY MR. FCHU:
12605 13 the suit I was wearing. ' moeot 13 Q. Steve, did you rely on the fact that no one threatened you
12606 14 Q. Okay. Did you see anyone else you knew there? 12000 14 with infringement, in your understanding -- I-mean, in your
12600 15 A.  Oh, yeah, several people. 112013 15 belief that you wouldn't get Infringed [sic]?
nze12 16 Q. You mentioned that Mr. Stack was a co-owner. Did you see 112915 16 MR, SCHROER: Objection.
12616 17 him there? 112015 17 BY MR. CHU: '
12e16 18 A. Yes, he was there. He was out in froﬁt of the building, 1z916 18 Q. TI'm sorry. That you wouldn't be sued?
12622 19 - and he was -- passed on his condolences for the passing of my | 1izs17 19 MR. SCHROER: Objection to the form of that question
v2628 20 © mother, which was -~ I was surprised with that, because my 12020 20 regarding a belief, and it’s irrelevant.

2633 21  mother hadn't passed away. 11:20:23 21 THE COURT: Overrdiled.
1263 22 Q. Okay. » 112024 22 MR. SCHROER: And it would be speculative.
112636 23  A.. And he told me that John had told him that my mother had 11:20.25 23 THE COURT: You canr ansWef that question.
263 24  died. 112026 24 BY MR. CHU: '
1240 25 Q. Okay. Did any of these people that you saw threaten to 112027 28 Q. Do you understand my question, Steve?
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1202 1 A. Did I think I was going to be sued? mazee 1 A, Yes.

112030 2 THE COURT: No, that's not the quéstion that's valid. a4 2 Q. Can you describe what these are?

112933 3 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. 113251 . 3 A. Yes. Exhibit 20, ;the first page, is an invoice from my
S 11:20:33 4 THE COURT: kTry again, Do you need me to repeat the s 4 company to Business Forms Sales for a frame stencil. Business
‘112037 B valid question? 7 a1 5 Form Sales is Stan Stack's company.

112037 6 MR. CHU: Please. 13314 6 The second page is a memo from Stan Stack to.a
112050 1 (Record read.) 13321 1  customer service person at my company'ordering the stencils.
12950 8  BY MR. CHU: 32z 8  These are all dated in 1999.

12e50 9 Q. That you wouldn't be sued for infringement. 1z 9 The third page is a -- is the quotation for the same
12054 10 A, Yes. wazas 10 order showing how much we were going to charge Stan for doing
11254 11 Q. - Thank you. 113342 11 the stencils.

113002 12 Based on that reliance, did you feel then that you 113347 12 And the last page is our invoice for doing the job
13006 13 were free to move forward making integrated products at USA? 113350 13 for Stan Stack and a copy of his check for paying us for that
113008 14 A Yes. 13z 14 job.

113008 18 Q. Integrated card products? mazsz 15 Q. Did you pull this exhibit from your records, your internat

1011 16 A, Yes. 1aeo0 16 records?

14:30:11 17 Q. Okay. Was it your understanding during these years that, mam 17 A, Yes, I did.

113023 18 again, Mr, Casagrande, Mr. Woolgy, and others that you spoke a2 18 Q. And Exhibit 21, please?

113031 19 to at the auction, know [sic] that your company, USA, made 1ae0s 19 A, Exhibit 21 is two different quotations from our company
113036 20 integrated cards? ' 1as12 20 - dated 2001, sent to Business Forms Sales, Stan's -- attention
113037 21 A, Yes, they kﬁew. mds2s 21 Stan Stack. And this is where he called us and wanted pricing
13038 22 Q. Why? 13426 22  on integrated -- on an integrated card quotation or order. So
13041 23 A. Well, we're well-known -- we're very well-known in the 113422 23 he called us for pricing, and this is our written quotation.
113044 24 industry. We do an enormous amount of mailings, an enormous 1343 24 Q. Are these exemplary orders and quotations that you

113048 25 amount of advertising. We have done work - integrated cards 113441 25 typically do with your customers?
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113054« 1 for John's partners. We've sent his partners -- they've asked 12443 1 A Yes.

13101 2  us for quotes for integratedrcarqs. We attend many, many 112443 2 MR, CHU: Your Honor, I move to admit both

13111 3 trade shows and exhibit our products that include integrated 1134046 3 Defendant's Exhibits 20 and 21.

st 4 products and, again, we do all kinds of mailings 113447 4 THE COURT: Objection?

13120 B and advertisings. 113448 D MR. SCHROER: May I voir dire briefly?

13120 6 MR, SCHROER: Mation to strike és nonresponsive. 113450 © THE COURT: We're not going to get anywhere if you're
ez 1 THE COURT: Overruled. 13453 T going to voir dire him on every foundation. You have an

13122 - 8 BY MR. CHU: 1maass 8 objection to foundation. There's no jury in the box. What's

1marza 9 Q. At any time prior to the filing of the lawsuit for the 1aass 9 your issue?

126 10 ‘488 patent, did you believe that the patent was somehow 113458 10 MR. SCHROER: I object on relevance grounds to 20 on
matzt 11 invalid or not infringed? 13502 11 the grounds that it has to do with a stenciled product.

1ataz 12 MR. SCHROER: Objection, irrelevant, 1rases 12 Stenicil products are not at issue here. It's entirely

13135 13 THE COURT: His belief is really not the issue. The 13s08 13 irrelevant.

mat3s 14 focus is whether he relied on the inactivity of others in 11508 14 And I -- on 21 1 don't think there's adequate

1343 15 seeking to sue him. So his speculation or belief of whether 11as:14 18 - foundation laid for the fact that this is a business record or

1natar 16 he's going to be sued is really not the question. tiss 16 that it was, in fact, received by the recipient, which is the

1zts0 17 So the ijection is sustained, and you can try to 13521 17 relevant point, if any.

135z 18 rephrase. 113522 18 THE COURT: Okay. It's not relevant to a business

113200 19 MR. CHU: 'I;hank you, your Honor. I'll mo;/e on. 113625 19 records foundation. It's relevant as to whether he maintained
113231 20 Your Honor, I'm about to refer to Exhibits 20 and 21 113528 20 them in the ordinary course of business, whether he relied on
13234 21 in your book. 11:35:30 2[1. them, and whether he used them in conducting his affairs.

11:32:35 22 THE COURT: Okay. 113534 22  Those foundations have been laid.

1azd2 23 BY MR. CHU: 113635 23 Whatever other issue you have with the documents
1m3zas 24 Q. Steve, I just handed to you what's been marked as 13538 24 themselves goes to the weight, so your objection is overruled.
113245 28 Defendant's Exhibits 20 and 21. 113541 25 They'll be admitted and you can cross on it.
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zrzo 1. Q Okay. Did you separate out or, you know, does your 12:14:4% 1 advertising integrated products.
121217 2 company separate out the costs for promoting integrated cards 121444 2 BY MR, CHU:
121219 3 as opposed to integrated -- or as opposed to all your other a5 3 Q. Okay. You would have continued to advertise your other
21225 4 products? ' ' i 4 products, though, correct?
121225 5 A, No. 121446 B A, Yes.
21228 6 Q. Why not? 121046 6 Q. Butwould the cost have been different?
wizes 1 A. Well, it would be very difficult to do and, you know, when 121449 7 A. I'm not sure what you mean. The cost of our business
121233 8  we're doing this, we don't expect td be in the position we're 121452 8 ofF ..
12123 9 in, to be quite honest. I mean, I don’t know any company that sz 9 Q. Just advertising in general,
121241 10 would do that. 12145 10 A, Yeah. It would have been minorly different.
121245 11 Q. Okay. Is there any way that you could estimate some -- 10 11 Q. Okay. Had you been sued, again, many years earlier, would
1z1247r 12 excuse me - 121503 12 you have considered just stopping making integrated cards?
121247 13 A. I could estimate some. I mean, you know, when we lookat | 121510 13 A. Yes.
121251 14 the inserts that highlight integrated cards, I know that ‘ 12155 14 Q Steve, is specialized machinery required to make USA's
121254 15 there's a substantial cost involved in that because there was 1520 16 integrated cards?
121258 16 production involved, there was buying the sheets, integrating 12:15:227 16 A. You mean specific machinery?
12130z 17 it, then paying to have it inserted in a magazine. I mean, 121524 17 Q. Yes.
121306 18 I -- I'd have to do a little homework on it. - 12125 18 A. Centralized? Yes.
121310 19 Q. Thank you. 121528 19 Q.” What kind of machinery?

C1zt311 20 Do you think that your overall advertising budget 12153 20 A.” We use primarily Tamaracks and FME machines, but they're

21316 21 over the years would have been different had you not 121537 21  much slower.
121319 22 promoted -- had you chosen not to promote integrated cards? 121508 22 Q. Okay. Just real quick, what is a Tamarack machine?
121321 23 MR. SCHROER: Objection, calls for speculation. 1241 23 A, Tamarack's a machine that's made for producing integrated
121323 24 THE COURT: Overruled. 121550 24 cards and integrated labels.
21325 25 BY MR. CHU: 121553 25 Q. Okay.
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121326 1 Q. You could answer the question. 121557 1 A. That's their sole purpose. I mean, you can do -- we have
121327 2 A. I'm notsure if I understand the question. 121601 2 several Tamaracks and we have one that has a glue unit that we
121328 3 Q. As president of USA -- 121604 3 could do frame stencils on, which is, you know; very, very few
124330 4 A. Right. 121600 4  and far between, but the machines are made primarily for
121330 B Q. --can you tell me whether -- whatever you spend on 121614 B integrating labels and cards.
121334 O advertising, if that amount would have changed -had you not 2ww 6 Q. Okay. And what does an FME machine do?
121340 1  promoted integrated cards? 121619 7 A. Same thing, just a little bit siower. And a Tamarack has
121342 8 A. Itwould have changed, but not -- not by much. 121624 8 to do -- a Tamarack machine will do certain form depths, and
zizsr 9 Q. Okay. If you chose not to promote integrated card 121620 9 it's limited because they have to get a -~ have to have a
1z13s7 10 products, how would that change your advertising? 121632 10 corresponding cylinder. An FME is more computer driven and
121403 11 - A. Well, I would have had more space to advertise in. I 12163 11 will do odd size form depths. Like it'll do a form that's
121407 12 would havé promoted -- highlighted other products too. 121642 12 three and a third whereas a Tamarack will only do eleven, 22,
121413 13 Q. If you had been sued for Infringement of the '488 patenit 121647 13 depending what cylinders you have.
121418 14 years ago -- » izte40 14 Q. Okay.
121420015 A, '488, yeah, 121640 15 .~ A. And a cylinder can cost $25,000.
121421 16 Q. -- the '488 patent years ago, say, back -- you krow, back 126 16 Q. Do you use these Tamarack or FME machines to make anything
121424 17 all the way to 1995, do you think your adyértising 2ot 17 other; than integrated cards and integrated labels?
121420 18 expenditures over the years would have been different? 124705 18 A. -Other than I said the very, very minuté on one machine
1z 19 A. Yes. ‘21119 frame stencils, which is next to nothing, so 99.9999999

w1z32 20 Q. How? 121721.20  peréent is for integrated cards and labels.
21434 21 A, Well, it would have been less. We wouldn't have been s 21 Q. Okay. Between are integrated cards and integrated labels

121436 22  advertising -- » 121727 22 now --"and let me back up for a second.
124406 23 MR, SCHROER: Objecfion, calls for speculation. 121720 23 What is an integrated label?
121437 24 THE COURT: Overruled. 121721 24 A, An integrated label is similar to an integrated card,
121430 25 121734 25 except that there's -- it's ~- when you remove it, same with

THE WITNESS: We wouldn't have spent the money
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1z1740 ‘1 the -- the adhesive stays with the label like on the card, but 122003 1 THE COURT: I don't have anything at 7, 8, and 9.
121744 2 it'§ still tacky and it's designed to be taken off and -- it's 12205 2 MR. SCHROER: Apologies, your Honor. May I approach?
121750 3 - like these labels here, We take it off and stick it on 122020 -3 Very sorry.
“2175¢ 4 something else. 12203 4 THE COURT: Thank you.
1z17sa -5 Q. Okay. So'it's a sticker? 12203 B MR. CHU: And 10. Sorry. Yes.
n2izse 6 A, Yeah-- well, we call them labels, but - 12203 6 THE COURT: Oh, I don't have 10 either.
1z1zse 1 Q. Okay. So between integrated cards and integrated labels, 122097 1 MR. SCHROER: Okay.
121803 8  can you tell me what percentage of the time that the Tamarack 122046 8 MR. CHU: Were you able to get them, your Honor?
121807 9 machine runs would be used for integrated cards versus 122050 9 THE COURT: Okay.
w1810 10 integrated labels? 22100 10 BY MR. CHU:
z1e13 11 A. Well, it's changed of late, but I would say it's probably 122010 11 Q. Steve, I have just handed you what's been marked as
121816 12 more integrated cards now. 122113 12 - Defendant's [sic] Exhibits 7,8,9, and 10.
21619 13 Q. Okay. You said now. How is it -- has that changed? r2o17 13 Do you recognize these exhibits?
121822 14 - A, Yes. 122118 14 A. Yes, I do.
121823 15 Q. How? 122120 15 Q. What are they?
21824 16 A. We do -- we have more -- we have some larger orders for | 12212 16~ A. These are invoices from Tamarack for the four Tamarack
121829 17 . integrated cards that we didn't have at -- when I was first 12211 17 machines we purchased to do integrated cards and labels.
21637 18 sued. 122138 18 Q. Okay. Let's start with Exhibit 10, because it appears to
121899 19 Q. Okay. And back in 1995 or so when you first started 122201 19 be the earliest in date.
121844 20 making integrated cards, did you use a Tamarack machine to 122146 20 A. Okay.
121849 21 make them? 122146 21 Q. Okay. Does this document indicate the date that this
w21sa9 22 A. Yes. 122150 22 invoice was created?
121850 23 Q. And so you owned a Tamarack machine back at - during the 1z2is2 23 A, Yes. May 12th, 1993.
121857 24 -early '90s then? 122156 24 Q. Okay. And what are the products that are invoiced here on
r1900 25  A. Yes. 122203 28 Exhibit 10?
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121900 1 Q. How many Tamarack machines did you own when you started 1222z 1 A, It's a Tamarack label applicator, which is -- basically
121903 2. .out? 2z 2  this is an entire Tamarack machine.
121904 3 A. In 1986 when I started out? 122210 3 Q. Which is an entire Tamarack machine, the -- thase various’
21908 4 Q. Yes. 122214 4 ‘entries or each one?
121900 5 A. We didn't own any. 122215 5 -A. Yeah, combined.
121911 6 Q.. Okay. Well, how did you make integrated cards back then? 22is 6 Q. Combined is a single Tamarack machine?
121915 1 A. In 19862 122218 - € A, ‘Yeah.
12196 8 Q. 1996. 122216 8 Q. Does this correspond to the first Tamarack machine that
zies 9 A, '96? 122224 - 9 you had, that you owned?
z1e7 10 Q. I'msorry. 122228 10 A. Yes, but I =- this would be what -- this is the invoice
1z1o7 11 I meant -- I'm sorry. 122230 11 for the balance to us. The machine costs more than this.
12107 12 Started out making integrated cards. 12244 12 Q. Okay. What is the cost of the machine that you --
121919 13 A. The question, we -- we bought a Tamarack. 122246 13 . A. ‘I think this one was $197,000.
121922 14 Q. So back In 1995, when you started making integrated cards, 122240 14. Q. Okay. Was this document produced from USA's records?
121926 15 how many Tamaracks did you own? n2n 18 A, Yes.
121927 16 A, By 1995 I think we probably had two or three. 1z2zs2 16 . Q. ‘Do you have the rest of this invoice somewhere?
121035 17 Q. Okay. How many do you own now?. 122255 17~ A. Idon't know.
izse37 18 A. Four Tamaracks and three FMEs. v 12:23:05 18 Q. In the upper right-hand corner there's a number written in
121042 19 Q. Did you own any FMEs when you first started making 122308 19 a circle?

o 20 integrated cards in 1995? 122308 20 A. Yes.
121946 21 A, No. 22008 21 Q. Do you see that number?

12:10:47 22 MR. CHU: No. 122311 22 What is that number?
121948 23 Okay. Your Honor, I'm now going to refer to 122313 23 A. Ithink that's the total cost of the machine.
121053 24 Plaintiff's Exhibits 7, 8, 9, and 10. That's in the white 125315 24 Q. Okay. Do you know who wrote that there?
121956 25 book that yourhave. 122317 25. A. No.
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zzziz 1 Q. Okay. But by your estimation what is a Tamarack 122551 1 THE WITNESS: Okay.
122824 2~ machine -- what did a Tamarack machine cost back in 19937 122551 2 BY MR, CHU:
122321 3 A. $200,000. - 12:26:52 7 3 Q8

Tuzza2s 4 QU Okay. Let's go back to —- 12253 4 A, Yes.
4122330 5 A. You know ... 12265 8 - Q. And let me ask you what the date is on this?
122333 6 Q. Go ahead. 122558 -6 A. This is January of 1997. This is another Tamarack
122333 1 ~ A. This is just for the machine. This doesn't involve 122604 1 machine. '
12233 8  anything else. ' ' 122605 8 Q. Okay: And why was this Tamarack machine purchased?
122008 9 Q. What do you mean anything else? ) 122614 9 A, Todo integrated cards and integrated labels.
12233 10 A, Well, I mean, you knbw, we might pay a quarter -- have to 12:2‘6:20 10 Q. And w’ere you involved in this purchase?
122042 11 pay a quarter of a miilion dollars for the machine, but then 12222 11 A. Yes.
122345 12 we've got to pay, you know, 10-, $20,000 for getting it 122622 12 Q. And what was the cost of this machine?
122350 13 . wired -- hard wired, the freight to Qet it to us, everything 122626 13 A, 2- == the machine itself, just fhe machine was $242,000.
122853 14 else. This'is just for fhe machine, not aﬁy of the peripheral 12:26:31 14 Q. Okay. Let me go back, finally, to Plaintiff's Exhibit 7.
122357 15 - costs. 122638 15 What is the date on this invoice, Steve?
122357 16~ Q. Okay. Did you have to hiré somebody to operate these 122641 16 A. This is July 30th, 1997.
122400 17~ machines? ' wasar 17 Q. And what is shown on this invoice?
122400 18 A, Oh, sure. I mean, yes, yes. 122650 18 - A. This is another ~- an additional Tamarack that the cost
122405 19 Q. Okay. Let's look at Exhibit 9 going backwards. 122100 19 was $265,835, and, again, that's just the cost for the
122412 20 A, Yes. 122150 20 machine. ’
122e12 21° Q. The date on the upper right? 122700 21 i Q. Okay. So each of these four machines now are owned by
2oa1a 22 A. May v20th, 1996. 122114 22 " USA? You still own these machines?
122420 23 Q. Okay. And what is shown on this invoice? 122716 23 A, Yes.
122422 24  A. These are all the costs for a -- another Tamarack with the 122125 24 MR, CHU: Okay. Your Honor, I'd move to admit

22428 25 total cost of $266,000. iz2727 25 Exhibits 7, 8, 9, and 10 as Plaintiff's Exhibits.
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wazm 1 Q. Okay. And is this representative of more of the total w2zrao 1 THE COURT: Okay. Any objection to the exhibits?
122440 2  number of modules or accessories for a typical Tamarack 122703 2 MR. SCHROER: No objection, your Honor.

122446 . 3 . machine that are not shown in Exhibit 10? 122735 3 THE COURT: Okay. They'll be admitted.
122428 4 A Yeah, but they're not typical. These are custom made 122138 4 MR. CHU: Thank you, your Honor.
122451 -5  machines. As you can see, we gave a down payment on this in | 122747 . 5  BY MR. CHU:
122455 6 1995 and it wasn't delivered until May of '96. 122148 6 Q. In addition to these -- I'm sorry, Steve.
122450 1 Q. Okay. Were you in\(olved in this purchase of this Tamarack 122181 1 So in the years that are shown in Exhibits 7, 8, 9,
122504 - 8  machine for Exhibit 97 122755 8  and 10, in the years spanning from these exhibits -- from 1993
122505 9 A. Yes. 122801 - 9 through 1997 -~ why did you purchase these machines?
122506 10 Q. Okay. Why did -- why did USA purchése this secénd 122808 10 "~ MR. SCHROER: Objection, asked and answered.
122510 11 Tamarack machine? -l THE COURT:" Pardon? Asked and answered?
1225611 12~ A. To do integrated cards and labels. 12812 12 MR. SCHROER: Yeah.
122514 13 Q. Why did you need to buy a second machine to do that? 22813 13 THE COURT: Overrtled.
122518 14 A. Because we were doing integrated cards. If we were doing | 122815 14 THE WITNESS: To manufacture integrated cards and
122522 15 just one product, we could get by with a lot less machines. 122810 18 labels, to produce integrated cards and labels.
122525 16 Q. Okay. So was the Tamarack of Exhibit 10 sufficient to 122827 16 BY MR. CHU:
122530 17 meet your needs in" 19967 12828 17 Q. Steve, you also mentioned FMA machines?
122533 18  A. No. _ ‘ 122852 18 . A. No. FME.
wosa 19 Q. Okay. Is fﬁere anything‘elsé that you wrant to poin‘t out 1228:33 19 Q I'm sorty. FME machines?
28140 ‘20 with respect to this exhibit, 97 : 122835 20 A. Right.
Liz2543 21 MR. SCHROER: Objection, calls for speculation. 122836 21 Q, And how many FME machines has USA bough; over the years?
122546 22 THE WITNESS: No, just that -- w2283 22 A, Three.
122547 23 THE COURT: Sustained. 22641 23 Q. And db ykdu remember approximately what these 'maéhines_
122548 24 MR. CHU: Okay. Youf Honor, I apologize. Let me o843 24 cost?
122550 2D move to the next exhibit. | ' 22844 28 A, I gota -- because we bought three, we got a good price on
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123353 1 MR. SCHROER: I have no proof that they did. 12433 1 law. 1don't know.
123357 2 THE COURT: Other than Mr. Lindstrom's -- 124338 2 THE COURT: Okay. Let's continue, though, until we
123000 3 MR. SCHROER: More importantly, there's no proof that 124300 3 have to break.
“rasa02 4 these -- or for the sole purpose of integrated cards and I 124340 4 BY MR. CHU:
i 120407 5 think the testimony is clear from what I've heard so far that 22 B Q. Okay. Steve, do you recall buying these three FME
123411 6 they were not. So there's a relevance objection -- 124346 6  machines?
12:34;13 7 THE COURT: That they weren't what? They weren't for 124350 1  A. Yes. The longer things go on, the better my memory is
123415 8 integrated cards? 12435 8 sometimes.
123416 9 MR. SCHROER: For that sole purpose, that's correct. 1aase -9 Q. Okéy. But you participated --
123410 10 THE COURT: Okay. Does it tell us what exactly the 124355 10 A. -- specifically.
123422 11 machine is in here? 1zaasr 11 Q. You participated in thoée purchases; is that correct?
123423 12 MR. CHU: Your Honor, Steve did not testify that they 1za350 12 A, I;bought them at a show in Florida. I saw them
123426 13 . were -- their sole purpose was integrated cards. ' 124405 13 demqnstrated, and they wanted $116,000 each for‘ them. And I
123420 14 THE COURT: Right. 124412, 14 said, What can we do if I were to buy three of them? They had
123431 15 MR. SCHROER: So there's a relevance objection as 124416 15 . a little bit of a conference, came back and said, We could do
2oz 16 well. sza010 16 it for 105. I said, Well, all right. Let me think about it.
123432 17 THE COURT: Well, he's laid the relevance that they 124424 17 -~ And they said, What would it take? I said 100,000 each and I
123435 18 were; that's his testimony. Now, whether or not you want to 24131 18 would order three of them today. And they did it. I remember
123438 19 “challenge that, that goes to the weight. 7 1zazz 19 that very well,
123430 20 The question is whether it's a business record. He 12443 20 Q. And why, again, did you buy these machines?
123443 21 dqesn't have a business record. It's really the foundation of 124436 21. A To Ho integrated cards_and labels.
123445 22 . a no business record. ‘ 124438 22 Q. Okay. '
123445 23 MR. CHU: I would submit this is part of 124441 23 A, You see, again, they do odd depths. I said that already,
122450 24 evidentiary ... 124444 24  though.
23450 28 THE COURT: All right. I will admit it 124445 25 Q. Depths?
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123452 14 conditionally, and you can continue to challenge it, but it 12406 1 - A, Odd form depths.
123456 2  seems to me that the only way they're going to prove it up is 124009 2 Q. Okay. And is a8 Tamarack capable of doing that?
1zaxse 3 . if Mr. Lindstrom comes in and verifies that, And I don't want zas2 3 A. Notwith - no.
123502 4 to turn this trial into some massive fishing expedition, so if 12a055 4 Qu Okay.
123508 B there's any other way that would be better -- excuse me for a 1za55 D A. Not without buying a very expensive cylinder. And, see,
123511 8 moment. 124458 6 you don’t want to buy a very expensive cylinder because you're
123529 T Excuse me. I have a jury delibérating, so I'll be 124502 1 going to get an order for -- you might get an order for
12:35:31 8 right back in a minute. 124505 - 8 three-and-a-third-inch depth forrh, because that's not a normal
123533 9 MR. CHU: Certainly, your Honor. 124500 9 standard form depth. So our Tamaracks 90- -- don’t get me
123622 10 (Recess taken.) 124515 10 - wrong, the FMEs also do standard depths. One's computer
124301 11 THE COURT: Okay. Folks, I have a verdict. .So when 124520 11 driven; one's gear driven.
124303 12 the lawyers arrive, we'll end qnd take a lunch break, but 124523 12 . Q. Thank you. :
1za30r 13 welll keep going until they come, because it takes them a 124523 13 So since you've testified that the FME machines make
124300 14 little while to do that. Okay. 124526 14 both integrated labels and intergrated cards, would you have
124311 15 MR. CHU: Thank you, your Honor. 124532 18 bought these FME machines anyway had you decided to stop
12312 16 MS. CRISWELL: What's the case about? 124538 16 making integrated cards?.
124313 17 THE COURT: It's a criminal case. It's a criminal 124539 17 A, No.
124315 18 case inside bank robbery. So'it just ended yesterday, and 124530 18 Q. Why?
124319 19 there’s a female teller supervisor on trial for the inside 124540 19 A, I wouldn't have had a need for them.
" wq323 20 bank robbery. 7 1zas45. 20 Q. But wouldn't you still need them to make integrated
‘_;2§43-24 21 So they're out there ready to deliver their verdict 124540 21 © labels? 7
124328 22 and also ready to eat lunch, which has not arrived. 124550 22 - A. No.
124331 23 MR, CHU: Okay. 124551 23 Q. Why r;ot? :
124331 24 THE COURT: So that's the crisis de jour. 124552 24 A. Because I would have had the other machines.
12:43:34 25v MR. CHU: Perhaps‘a bit more exciting than patent 12:45:55 25 Q. Okay. Had you been sued for infringement of the '488




128
125541 1  to market the product. We push all of our products hard like
125547 2  that.
128547 3 THE COURT: Okay. Can you hold on just one second,
“azssso 4 Mr. Chu?
ase2 B (Discussion had off the record.)
126602 6 MR. CHU: I'm almost done, your Honor.
125603 1 THE COURT: Thank you.
125604 8 BY MR. CHU:
1zss0s 9 Q. Would you consider, as president of USA, that integrated
125612 10 cards are a commercial success for you?
1zse1s 11 A, Yes.
125614 12 Q. Why?
126615 13 A. Because we do a very good job not only marketing, but we
2se1e 14 provide excellent, excellent quality. We stand behind our
125624 15 products and have satisfied customers.
n2se1 16 Q. Steve --
125632 17 A. I -~ I'm not sure if I understand thg question.
1zs633.18 Q. No, I think you answered it.
125635 19 A. Okay.
1zs636 20 Q. Steve, there's a variation on a question I asked you
1zsaa0 21 earlier.
12:56:40 22 Based on your past experience of being sued by John
125644 23 in 1993 for patent infringement, did you rely on Jobn's
125640 24  failure to sue ybu on the '488 patent in continuing to market
25654 25 and sell integrated cards?
129
125656 1 MR. SCHROER: Objection, leading and suggestive.
125658 2 THE COURT: Okay. It's the issue for the Court that
125700 3 1 asked you to address, and so you may answer the question.
125704 4  Overruled.
125705 B  BY MR. CHU:
2sros 6 Q. You may answer that, Steve.
125708 7 A. Okay.
125123 8 THE COURT: The question is:
125725 9 (Record read.)
125725 10 THE WITNESS: Yes, he would have -- yes, he's very
125728 11 litigious.
126720 12 MR. SCHROER: Move to strike the last comment, your
125720 13 Honor.
125731 14 THE COURT: Sustained, and it will be stricken.
125732 15 MR. CHU: But the answer yes stays? -
125734 16 THE COURT:  The remainder of the answer is fine.
125737 17 MR. CHU: Thank you, your Honor. One quick
1zsra1 18  housekeeping matter.
125742 19 I think 1 neglected to move to admit Exhibit 19,
1s746. 20 which is -
srar 21 THE COURT: Plaintiff's or defendant's?
125748 22 MR. CHU: Which is the auction fier.
125750 23 MR. SCHROER: No objection to 19, your Honor.
125753 24 THE COURT: Okay. It will be admitted.
125756 2B MR. CHU: Thank you, your Honor.
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THE COURT: All right. Folks, good timing. we'll
take a lunch break until 2:00 o'clock, and we wiil pick up
exactly there he left off at 2:00.

MS. CRISWELL: And you do have time tomorrow, right?

THE COURT: Yes, I do.

And, sir, because you have been tendered for
cross-examination, you may not speak with your attorneys
regarding your testimony over your lunch hour. Understood?

~ THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

THE WITNESS: Shall I leave this here, your Honotr?

THE COURT: You know, would you give this to your
attorneys, please?

(Lunch recess taken at 12:58 p.m.)
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oz1e0z 1 (Resumed at 2:18 p.m.) 022tz 1 Q. And it would be the same back in 1996, correct?
021802 2 THE COURT: Okay. Mr. McKillip, you may take the oz2106 2 A. Yes.
021805 3  stand again, please, oz2tor 3 Q. Sothat you haven't lost or, in the ordinary course,
ez 4 (Witness takes the stand,) 022115 4 gotten rid of any‘busines's records since 1996 that would
o2ig12 B MR. SCHROER: May it please the Court? 022117 B enable you to explain why your products, in your opinion,
021813 © THE COURT: VYes. 022121 6  don't infringe going all the way back to 1996. Fair
ozteta T MR. SCHROER: Thank you. oz2125 1 statement?
021814 8 --- 022126 8 A. No, no, it's not.
oz81a 9 STEPHEN MCCLUSKEY MCKILLIP, CROSS-EXAMINATION 022129 9 Q. But there -- the samé product manufactured in the same way
oz1814 10 BY MR. SCHROER: 022132 10 - With the same materials and the same machinery, correct?
oziee 11 Q. Mr. McKillip, good afternoon. My name is Stéve Schroer. ezzs 11 A. Yeah.' Maybe I misunderstood. Yeah, I thought you were
oz1e19 12  A. Hello. oz213r 12 asking me about business records going back to 1996.
oztez1 13 Q. 1 represent the plaintiff in the case. o222 13 Q. Okay. Now, you have testified about some advertising and
oz1e22 14 A. Hi. 022147 14 ‘marketing materials that you used --
oz1e2s 15 Q. We've never met, have we? ozz150 18 A. Yes.
oz1e2s 16 A. No. oz2150 16 Q. -- to illustrate the kind of work you did with relating --
ozie2s 17 Q. Okay.  I'm going to ask you primarily about things you've a221s4 17 with respect to integrated cards, correct?
ozie29 18  already discussed this morning. 022156 18 A. Correct.
w1s30 19 A. Okay. o2iss 19 Q. “And this is a sample of that, Is it not?
oz1830 20 Q. And -- just to get a little bit different perspective, wavss 200 A, No, it's not.
oz1834 21 perhaps, on certain things. 22201 21 Q. So it would have -- but there were things like this in
021835 22 In the first instance, 1 would like to ask you about w220t 22 some of those catalogs? '
021830 23 this document, and I think it's Exhibit 16. 022206 23 A. No.
021856 24 And you'll recognize it from ... 02207 24 Q. Okay. I'll come back to that after a few --
21g0s 25 - A. I have it here somewhere, but you can go ahead. I know oz2200 25 A, -- actual order for somebody. This isn't an
135 137
oz19os 1 whatitis. 022212 1 advertisement.
oz1e3:2 2 Q. You got it. 022213 2 Q. Understood.
0z1e3d 3 Now, you testified, as 1 recall, that this is an 022215 3 And I -- I didn't --
oz193s 4 example of the kind of integrated card product that your o221 4 A, Okay.
oz1042 5 company manufactures? oz2zr B Q. we'll get to an ad then to be specific about it.
oz1945 6 A. Yes. w2 6 A, Okay.
oz1s46° 1 Q. And this particular exampie is for a team dart tournament oz2225 1 Q. Ndw, you testified also about records, and there was a
0z1955 8 apparently to take place in April of next year in Las Vegas? oz2236 8 question about a summary that was prepared of your sales of
0z2000 9 A. Yes. 0z22z40 9 integrated cards --
22000 10 Q. Correct? ozzza1 10 . A, Yes.
0z2001 11 And in that context; I think I understood your o2z2241 11 Q. -- that had some numbers going back to 1997, if I recall?
022005 12 testimony correctly that for as long as you have been making 022247 12 A. Ibelieve it was 1996, but I'm -- I can let you know if
oz2000 13 integrated card products you've been doing the same thing with 022253 13 you want to know exact.
022013 14 the same materials and same machine_ry; is that correct? 0222:55 14 Q. Okay. And that was prepared by your accountant?
022017 15 A, Yes. 022258 15 A. I believe so.
| 022017 16 Q. S‘o that if we want to know What your manufacturing process ozz300 16 Q. 'And did your accountant have access to your financial
022025 17 was and what your product looked like in the year 2004 or 2000 oz:za:ﬁa 17 recordsin orﬂer to prepare that document?
022030 18  or even back to the beginning of 1995 or 1996, we can assume 02:23:09 18 A. Iwould assume he would have to have a; you khow -- but -~
oz2035 19 itwould bejust like this (indicating)? 022314 19 - Q. OKay. Apart from -- and 1 asked a bad question, and thank
) w2037 20 . A.  Yes. 022348 20 you for asking -- answering carefully.
o220 21 Q. Okay. And to be more particular, if we look at a product 022310 21 In terms of your own knowledge of the company's
022043 22  from the year 2001, in order to explain your own understanding 022323 22 , business records - specifically the records of sales and
w2050 23 of the product characteristics, as those may relate to the 022320 23 other financial aspects, costs, profits, and all that -- do
ozz055 24 patent in suit, it's the samé now as it was then; right? 022334 24  you keep your records back six years?
022100 25 A, Yes. 02:23:40 2D

A. We keep the financial statements, tax returns, our
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022345 1 accountants keep all of that. And I'm not trying to 0224 1 A. Yeah, I said prior to starting USA. Yes, it was United

022350 2 be evasive, but you're asking me a question about all the o224 2  Stencil and Affixing. ‘

022353 3 records. We'd have to have giant storage to keep every single | 022649 3 Q. And ‘immediately before that you worked for your brother

“wossr 4 record. v 022851 - 4 with American Stencil?

ozzass 9 Q. Sure. 022653 B - A. Correct.

022358 © But you keep some records in the company? 022653 © Qi And then you changed the name of United Stencil to USA

022400 1 A. Yes, some. o22r00 1 Stencil?

oz2e02 8 Q. And then your accountants keep other records for you, oo 8 A. No. ‘

oz2405 9 right? o22r02 9 Q. I'm sorry.

oz2405 10 A. For financial statements, for the Government required wroe 10 To USA/Docufinish?

oz2408 11 records that we keep, tax returns, all of that, payroll oz2ror 11 A, Yes, correct, because stencils are a very old-fashioned

022412 12 records, I'm sure the accountants have that. oz2r12 12 product and most people don't do them, so it didn't identify

o2z2414 13 Q. Going back to, say, 2000? ozzr:5 13 well what the company did. ‘

oz2417 14~ A. Oh, yeah, those fype of records that a CPA firm would o227:6 14 Q. So -- and your brother had been in the business, the

02242215 keep. I'm sure they have them -- I've had the same CPA firm | o272t 15 document business, that is the business form business, prior

022427 16 for twénty-sbme years. ozzrs 16 to your joining him in 1981, correct?

o22428 17 Q. Okay. So in terms of your ability to explain the sales of w2129 17 A, Oh,; yeah. He's been in it since the '60s, I believe.

o22435 18 - integrated cards that you've made since 2000 and the profits oz2734 18 - Q. And what job did you have before 19817

022440 19 or losses on those sales, you would have records going back to w22z 19 A. I'was a salesman.

oz2¢44 20 the year 2000 that would permit you to do that, you or your o2zr30 20 Q. For?

oz2448 21  accountant? ' ozzr40 21 'A. A medical salesman.

oz2448 22 -+ A. We could find that out, I think. oza 22 Q. So you had no prior experience in the business form

0z2451 23 Q. Okay. Iwant to go back to the beginhing of your 02:27:45 23 ' business before your brother took you on, right?

022458 24 testimony, and there were some questions asked aboutryour 022748 24 . A. Before 1980 or '81, yes, correct.

12:25:00 25 background. oz2r51 25 Q. I'm correct.
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oz2505 1 You picked urp your employment, according to my notes ozars2 1 So you learned the business from your brother in 1981

oz2510 - 2 -at least, with USA/Docufinish, which you founded in about 022755 2  to '86, then you left and set up a directly competitive

022519 3 1986; is that correct? oz2800 3  business, correct?

022520 4 A. Yes, November of 1986. wmez & A, No, I wouldn't put it that way.

oz2522 5 “Q. OKay. And you've been president the entire time. os2604 B Q. Well, I thought you testified earlier that, in fact, you

022527 © And Were you in this industry, the business form o2zm0s @  are competitive with your brother's business?

022632 1 industry, before that? o281 7 = A. Right. But you asked me that I learned the business from

w222 8 A. Yes. 022814 8  my brother then go set up a competitive business, and I don't

o223z 9 Q. As a matter of fact, you worked for your brother, didn't oz2s7 9 think I would put it in those terms.

ozzs3s 10 you? ozz10 100 Q. Well, you had no experience in the business before you

o253 11 A. Yes. o228t 11~ worked with your brother, correct?

02237 12 . Q. And what was the name of the company that you were with, 022624 12 - A. Not directly in the business, no.

022540 13 when you were working for your brother? 0222 13 Q. Andhehad a lot of years before you, correct?

oz2547 14 A. Oh, he had two. I don't know if they went bankrupt or if 022830 14 - A. Yes. He had been selling forms for quite a while in

w2550 15 he merged them, but Illinois Stencil and American Stencil.’ 022833 15 other =- '

022601 16 Q. He had Amierican Stencil and Illinois Stencil? 0z283 16 -~ Q. And then after working for his company for five years, you

02260 17 A. Yeah. o2za3s 17 left and set up );our own competitive business? That's

w2505 18 Q. -And which one did you work for? ' ozos41 18  correct, isn't it?

ozoe07. 19 A. Borth,iactually. They kind of morfed into each other, I w224z 19 A." No. ’

vtz 20 think. I wasn't there at the end. ' ' 022643 20 Q. Were you competitive or not? v
o265 21 Q. And when did you work at American Stencil for your wzsae 21 A. Well, you're asking me I left or, you know, like I --

c2z810 22 brother? oazeas 22 Q. Well, did he fire you?

2220 23 A. Iwould say that was for five years prior to starting USA. 022851 23 A, Yes:

oz2632 24 Q; And just to clarify, when you say prior to working for zsst 24 Q. Okay. And then you set up a competitive business?

o2z638 28 USA, wasn't your original name United Stencil? o22e65 25 A. With his permission.
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| THE COURT: And in the future if you want to use them ozasos 1 memory at ail?
023501 2 for cross, then don't object. It's a strategy, of course. 023805 - 2 A. Idon't remember, to be honest with you, in 201 [sic] what
023511 3 - BY MR. SCHROER: 023809~ 3 our sales were of that.
2:;" w1 4 Q. Okay. fhe testimony that you gave about the sales of ozast0 4 MR. CHU: You know, plaintiffs objected to this
N oz B integrated card products, you remember that? Just in general. ozag12 B . document.
ozaszr O  I'mjust drawing you into that context. ozag12 6 THE COURT: I know. The whole area of cross,
02352 7 A. ThatI gave today? o234 T everything you crossed on, everything you've objected to for
0230 8 Q. Yes. ozesi7 8 not admissibility you're using now on cross-examination.
23 9 AL TN try to remember. ozas20 9 . MR. SCHROER: Well, the fact that I objected -- you
ozasas 10 Q. Okay. Well, there Was that summary that you didn't ozas22 10 let most of it in, your Honor, you let a lot of it in, and
o0z3s36 11 prepare but your accountant did? oz3s2s 11  that's what I'm trying to follow up --
s2as38 12 A. Yes, I have it here. ozsszr 12 THE COURT: I let in the appropriate evidence under
0z3sa0 13 Q. Correct. 022820 13 the rules of eviidence. l
ozasa1 14 And it's correct, isn't it, that your sales of 023830 14 MR. SCHROERF: If you'll give me just a moment on
023544 1B - integrated card products have not steadily increased from the ozas32 15 this, 1 think I can tie it together.
23546 16 beginning, isn't it? ' 023034 16 THE COURT: Al right.
23551 17 A. 'No, that's not -- that's incorrect. ozss37 17~ BY MR. SCHROER:
ozass4 18 Q. Isn't it correct that your sales increased and decreased e 18 Q. Using 2001 as an example, what were the company's tatal
oz3s00 19 on a yearly basis? ozasa1 19 sales in that yearr?
023602 20 A. No. I think where some of the confusion is is you see a ozas40 20 - A. Iwould -- I céuldn't tell you exactly. I would have to
0236:05. 21  number of =~ for 1998 of 253,000 and a number for '06 of ozas46 21 estimate.
023614 22 337,000. But the problem is that number for '06 is just for ozas48 22 Q. And what's your best estimate? ’
0236:18 23 the first seven moﬁths only. It's not for the whole year. ozass1 23 A. 2001, I would say somewhere probably around $8 million.
0z325 24 Q. Well, d’o you have an independent memory of those sales? ozasw 24 Q. And just using that as an approximation, would you agree
< w320 25 A. Of each one of these? No, of course not, no. ButI can o23s06 25 with me that your sales of integrated cards were certainly
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o2a63s 1 read. I know that -~ what they're saying here. oz39:10 1 less than 10 percent of the companyfs entire sales?
ozsess 2 Q. Your sales went -~ as a matter of fact, from the year 2002 0zao1s 2 MR. CHU: 'Objection, your Honor. I don't see any
02:36:46 3 your sales never increased to that level again, did they, of 023017 3 - foundation for that statement.
ozaeso 4  integrated cards? oz3es 4 THE COURT: All right. Well, because 1 permitted him
w25t B A. Yes. o2zae19° B to testify about his knowledge of the sales, if he knows the
ozsess -8 Q. Not until after '06, th§ugh, correct? ozagzs B answer, he can answer it.
o2ass8 7 . A. I don't know what '06 was, but I would bet it was higher 023926 1 MR. CHU: Thank you, youtr Honor.
o2zaz01 8  than that: But you also havé to understand. These are 02:35:27 8 THE WITNESS: In 2001, would I say it was less
oz3ros 9 actually billed sales and things. In our industry, there's 023933 -9 than -- less than 10 percent?
ozar00 10 what we call WIP, work in progress. o0z393 10 BY MR, SCHROER:
ozar1r. 11 So, I mean, the sales from 2002 that appear high, a ozasas 11 - Q. Right.
023720 12 hundred thousand of those may have been orders that we oz3936 12 A, Based on -~ it's an awkward thing.
ozarz2 13" received in 2001 and didn't complete until -- o23s0 13 On my memory, yeah. Based on the numbers I just gave
w2 14 Q. - related question? 023943 14 you, that would make sense.
ozar0 16 A, -- easy. ozasas 15 Q. 1t's correct, isn't it, that through -- in no year prior
023734 16 Q. Let's just take 2001 as an e)éample. 0zass52 16 to 'the filing of this lawsuit, in ‘06, were your sales of
ozares 17 Do you have a memary of what your sales of integrated 02:39:58 1'77 integrated cards more than 10 percént of the company's total
ozarar 18 cards were? oza002 18 - sales?
ozaraz 19 A, T would -- independently, no, but I would look at hgré and ozdo03 19 A.'I don't know, because I don't know about what happened in
v"ﬂvﬁ 23746 20 I would guess what they were. I would sée what they were. oza008' 20~ '06.
(\“:62:37;50 21 Q. Okay. Well, this -~ this - and I'm -- this docum’ent; 024053 21 Q. I'm going to hand you, sir, which has been marked as
0237504 22 prepared by someone elée, says they were about $515,000 that 024056 22  Defendant's Exhibit 25. Would you take a look at that?
ozarse 23 year? ’ ozatos 23 And do you recognize that one?
ozasoo 24 A. Right. oz4126 24 - A. I know what it is, yes.
o23so0 25 Q. Is that consistent with your memory or do you have any ozarzr 25 Q. What is it?
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ozatas 1 A, Itsays it's a comparative statement of operations and ozasi2 1 A. Yes.
oz4t39 2 accumulated deficits. ozae47 2 Q. And could I ask you to find the portion of that that has
024143 *3 Q. Is that a document that was prepared by your accountants? 024450 3 the green cover. It's the eighteenth annual buyers' guide?
warsa 4 A, Idon't know. This -- this doesn't look like our =- what ozae53 4 A, I've got Exhibit 23 as this.
o24t58 B our accountants typically do. But I -- I don't know anybody oza508 B Q. That's the first page?
ozaz04 6 else whd would have done it. wasio 6 A. That's the cover.
ozazos 1 - Q. You just don't recognize it? o24517- 7 Q. I'msosry.
ozaz1i0 8  A. This does not look -- I don't know what you're =- I o258 O Do you have this page? What you have is what's part
oz4z14 9  understand what this says this is, but I do not recognize 02:45:24 9  of a group exhibits. There's other stuff --
0za221 10 this. oz4s26 10 A. Yeah, I have ...
oza223 11 - Q. Okay. Then I'm not going to ask you questions about it. md4sz0 11 Q. And I want to ask you about a part of it that's in my hand
024226 12 But let me ask you a couple of general follow-up questions. 024535 12" that is the eighteenth annual buyers’ guide.
ozazz0 13 You gave some information to the Court about wesxn 13 A Yes.
ozazas 14 advertising that -- and marketing and so on that you -- that oz4538 14 Q. Do you have it?
024244 18 the company had incurred. You recall that? 0z4s38 15 A. Yes.
ozazas 16 A. Yes. oz4s45 16 Q. And we have here, according to the doéuments 1 was given
ozazas 17 Q. And there were those sales brochures and those catalogs 024554 17 at least, the cover page. Then pages 39 --
oz42zs3 18  that you put ads in in the trade shows. Do you recall those, ozas50 18 - A. Yes. 7
ozazs9 19  generally? 024559 19 Q. -- 291 and 362, 363 of that buyers' guide; correct? Is
02:42;59 20 A. Yeah. They're nbt catalogs. These are publications. ozaso0 20  that what you have too?
024304 21 They're -- each one is read by 16,000 people. ozas:10 21 -~ A. Yes, yes, sir.
oza30s 22 Q. Well, you don't know how many people read it, do you? a2 22 Q. And is what we have here just the excerpts from that that
0za300 23 A. Yes, I'do. 024616 23 contain reference to the products made by certain companies
024310 24 - Q. You -- you know that 16,000 people réad -- oz4621 24  and then the products that certain companies make, the
24314 25 A. I know that the publisher of ‘this magazine reports to us 024627 25 cross-reference?
; 151 153
024317 1 that 16,000 people read -- read ~- 024622 1  A. (No response.)
wazze 2 Q. They report to you that 16,000 copies are distributed, 024629 - 2 Q. Are you with me?
oza323 3  correct? 024630 3 A. Yeah. Do you want me to explain to you what it is?
024324 4 A.V No. They report that 16,000 people read it. There's less ozae32. 4 Q. Well, why don't you just let me ask the questions.
024320 5 copies than that distributed. Their statistics, their oz4e38 B A, Okay.
oz4337 B  studies -- oz4636 6 Q. The second page --
oz4337 1 MR. SCHROER: Move to strike the narrative. It's oza637 -7 - A. Okay.
024339 -8 ° nonresponsive. oz4637 8 Q. -- which has page 39 in the lower right.
oz4z40 9 THE COURT: No. You asked the question. ozé6e2 9 A. Yes.
oza343 10 MR."SCHROER: Well, all right. 024642 10~ Q. Has a heading right in the geographical center of the
oza343 11 BY MR. SCHROER: oza645 11 page, Cards, comma, integrated. Do you see that?
024343 12 Q. Go ahead. 024548 12 "A. Yes.
o0za324 13 You're talking about somebody's statistics? oza648 13 Q. And listed under that are, according to my count, about 63
oza34s 14 A. I'm talking about the publisher has informed us of that. oza52 14 - different companies who manufacture integrated cards?
ozazso 15 Q. Okay. But you don't kinow that to your own knowledge? ozaes7 15 A. Correct.
ozazs3 16 A. They told us. Ibelieve them. . - ozées8 16 Q. Is every one of those competitives with your company?
024355 17 Q. Okay. ‘Now, the expenditures that you described to the ozazot 17~ A. Competitors?
ozaior 18 Court for-advertising, for example, are not only to advertise wirez 18 Q. Yeah.
ozas11 19 integrated card products; Is that correct? wzares 19 A. No.
14415 20 -~ A, Correct. 7 - ozaroa 20 Q. Why not?
—dz4a18°21 Q. And you have many, many other préducts that you sell, oz4704 21 - A. Some of them are my customers.
0zaa23 22  correct? ' , oaror 22 Q. Okay.-And there are different kinds of integrated cards,
ozas25 23 A. Yes. But some of the advertising that was in here that we | 024710 23 aren't there? 7
024431 24 ~ showed the Court was spécific to that product. ozaria 24 . A. Fora layperson, no. I mean, they're -- I wouldn't
ozad3s 25 Q. So, for examble -- do you have Exhibit 23? oza7:16 25 . say-so.
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ozar7- 1 Q. Well, for example, a card -~ a card that just is within -- ozs0ar -1 A. Those aren't advertisements in the annual show. That's
ozar27 2  within an integrated page and has perforations and can be 025041 2 attending the annual show, and we --
024733 3 removed, that's an integrated card, isn't it? ozs044 3 Q. Well, in Exhibit 17 you listed tens of thousands of

- 024725 4 A. No. ozs053 .4 dollars of expenses for booths and the like at various shows

© szar 5 Q. Not in your opinion? ozsto1© B that yourattributed to integrated cards?
ozar37 6  A. ‘No, not in anybody's opinion. That product has been 025103 6 A, Yes, yes, but --
oz4740 T  around -- 025104 T MR. CHU: Your Honor, I object. That
ozar41 8 Q. I just asked for your opinion, sir. 025106 8 . mischaracterizes --
ozares 9 A, No, it's not. ozstos 9 THE WITNESS: Don't confuse it with things like this.
oza746 10 Q. And then if we turn over to page 362 <~ and I'm now o2s100 10 THE COURT: Okay. Hold on. I didn't hear the
oza757 11 looking at the last two pages of this eighteenth annual ozs110 11 objection.
ozaso1 12 buyers' guide. ozst1 12 MR. CHU: Mr. Schroer is mischaracterizing the
ozaz01 13 A. Yes, sir. o513 13 testimony. That's not what Mr. McKillip testified to.
ozas01 14 Q. In the lower right-hand corner of page 362, we see your o257 14 THE COURT: Okay. You can ask questions. Overruled.
ozas0s 15 company's listing, correct? 025123 15 BY MR. SCHROER:
wasor 16 A, Yes. ozs124 16 Q. Weil, let's just take a look at Exhibit 17.
ozasor 17 - Q. And then in the first two columns of the next page -- ozst25 17 THE COURT: Are we again looking at an exhibit that's
ozas11 18 A, Yes. 025128 18 not admitted yet because they withdrew it because it hasn't
oczasts 19 - Q. -- are lists of the different product categories that you 025131 19 been supported?
ozas19 20 - actually sell -- manufacture and sell, correct? 025133 20 MR, CHU: 17 is admitted, your Honor.
024823 21 A. Yes, o253 21 THE COURT: 17 is in?
oz4szs 22 Q And were the expenses -- strike that.‘ 025136 22 MR. CHU: Yes. Are you referring to 17?
024834 23 The advertising and marketing expenses to which you oostas 23 MR. SCHROER: I'm referring to 17 at this point, and
024835 24 testified this morning include the costs of being listed in, 025140 24 I'm informed it's admitted, your Honor. At least once I 7
24841 25 for example, the eighteenth annual Print Solutions Buyers' ozstas 25 haven't committed that sin. I'm trying.
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oz484s 1 Guide, correct? w2star 1 THE COURT: And itis. So you can look at it.
024648 2 A. (No response.) 025151 -2  BY MR. SCHROER:
024z 3 Q. You paid to be listed in this manner, did you not? stz -3 Q: Do you have it, sir?
oz4852 4 A. No. k 025153 4 A. I have it in my hand.
o2zae5¢ B Q. Oh, how did your name get in there? o2st54 8 Q. Okay. Well, let's just look at the first page there,
024856 6 - A. For the same reason Integrated Cards' hame is in there. 025158~ 6 which appears to include a total of $27,890 for booth fees?
0z4901 - We're members of the organization. 025206 7 A. Yes.
oz4902 8 Q. You paid to be in the organization, correct? azs207 8 Q. And that's -- that's for What?
'02:49:04 9 A we pay our annual dues to be in the organization. But 25208 9 - A. That's jhst for the annuél show only, once a year. These
oza008 10 this is just a buyers' guide that they put out every single os214 10 - are the dates of the show, 1999 through 2006. But that's just
oz4e:14 11 year, and it lists everybody who makes every product. You ozs220 11 the oné show a year. These are all the other shows in
o2z4017 12 don't pay to be listed in it. 0zs225 12 - addition to these. If I could --
oza01e 13 Q. ‘And you included the expenses of joining the organization oze22s 13 Q. Okay. And when you say this is the show, is this the
024922 14 in your summary of expehses that you talked about this ozs231 14 integrated cards show?
ozas2s 18 morning, didn't you? ' ' ozsza2. 15 . A. No, no, no.
ozaozs 16 A. I'd have to look at the sumrﬁary of the thing, but I don't ozs233 16 Q. No.
ozag30 17~ know. I Ean look. ' oz:sé:aa 17 And, in other words, when you pay the money for these
o0z40:33 18 ‘ I mean, when we --"all these ads -~ dzs2ar 18 shows that you summarized for the Court, you are promoting all
ozao3s 19 Q. Wvould you just answer my question, sir? 02:52:;12‘ 19 of the products listed on page 363 of the prior exhibit,
w2403 20 - A. Okay. I'm sorry. I'll have tc; look. ozez48 20 correct?
_#so0s 21 Q. Check Exhibit No, 17, ' ozsz52 21 - A. Which exhibit is it?
ozs016 22 A. No, we -- it appears we did not include the expense of ozs2s4 22 Q. It was the —
a2s020 23 that, of joining that, no. 025255 23 A. Oh, yes. Yeah.
ozsozs 24 Q. Okéy. You did, however, include expenses for your ozszss 24 Q. And you have --
025026 25 ozs259 28 A, Do we exhibit all those products? Yeah, I mean, the

advertisements in the annual trade association show, correct?
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025306 1  products listed here say numbering MOD 7, MOD 11, It just ozseos 1 A. No.
0zs313 2 shows numbering because, you know -- but, yeah -- ozses 2 Q. You don't break down your records that way, do you?
ozs316 3 Q. Roughly -~ 1 apologize. I interrupted. oseos 3 AL No.

" o25322 4 A. Weshow representations of all those products. 02:56:18 4 Q. Now, let's talk in the same context about some equipment.
025326 B Q. And there are, give or take, 75 or 80 different kinds of 02:56:26 5_ Do you have Exhibits 10 -- 9, 10, 8, the documents
025329 ©  products? I cah add them. I'm sorry. I haven't. 028636 O ‘ related to Tamarack?

025337 1 A, Not really. ozs642 7 A. Yeah. Those aren't rélating to Tamarack.
ozs337 8 Q. Probably more like 60 categories of products? ozs644 ~ 8 Q. Oh, I'msorry. Ihave the PTX number.

" 025339 9 A. Notreally, becauée what you'ré Iobking at it says: Bar ozs654 9 ‘Yeah, I think your counsel did use PTX
ozsza1 10 codes consecutive, bar codes fixed image, bar codes variable | 25558 10 Av. Those are the letters that he wrote to our suppliers, 9
025346 11 - image: I mean, they're just -- if you were to be at our show | 25702 11 and 10, and where he --
ozsas0 12 and look at it, you would just say, Hey, do you guys do bar ozsr0s 12 Q. You should have three documents, Exhibits 8, 9, and 10 «-
wssss 13 codes? Yeah, here's a sample. Imean ... 025709 13 - A. What are the documents of?

2500 14 Q. So back to where we were, the first page of Exhibit 19 -- ‘25711 14 Q. That reflect Tamarack purchases.
ozsa04a 15 I'm sorry -- Exhibit 17, o2sz14 15 A. The purchases?
025406 16 A. Yes. ozs7:18 16 I know what they are. Yeah, I have them. They're
ozsa0s 17 Q. The $27,890 of expense there would have been gone to 02:57:21 17 - not -- they're 20- -- no, they're not. Oh, your exhibits? I
ozs415 18  promoting the bar code sales? ' o2s125 18 was looking at the other old ones.
ozs#17 19 A, Promoting all of our products, yes. ozszzr 19 Q. 1apologize. Your counsel used our exhibits.
ozsa19 20 Q. Including bar codes and including - | s 20 A. Okay.
ozse23 21 A, Yeah, the - 025730 21 Q; And I'm doing the same. It's --
ozs424 22 Q. -- integrated labels, corract? 025732 22 A, Okay. I've got them.
025427 23 A. Yes. ozsr 23 Q. Once in a while lawyers cooperate, not all that often,
025428 24 Q. And integrated labels are not the same as integrated ozsras 24 but ...
wsas2 28 cards. I'm correct, am I not? ozsras 25 A, I've got them.
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oss3s 1 A. Yes, you are. But, again -- 025738 - 1 THE COURT: Once in a while.
ozsazr 2 Q. And -- 2572 2 THE WITNESS: 7, 8, and 9, I have, and 10.
ozs438 3 A. Thisis just the annual show. 025746 3  BY MR. SCHROER: '
ozsa3s 4 Q. Sure: o2st47 4 Q. And the first of these chronologically is Exhibit 10 going
025441 B Now, focusing on Exhibit 17, now I just want to'talk ozsrss D back to May of '93. Are you with me?
o2s4ss 6  about the entire group of documents -- o2srss 6 A. Yes,
ozsad47 1 A. Yes. ozswo1 ¢ Q. And is that device still used to the present?
ozse47 8 Q. -- and ask you a general question. ozseos 8 A, Yes.
025449 9 It's correct, is it not, that the expenses reflected ozseos 9 Q. Okay. And Exhibit 9, I think, is the next one
ozs455 10 there in that entire exhibit, not just the one page, all are azsei6 10 chronologically, May 20th, 19967
ozsass 11 for promoting all of your products, not merely integrated wseo 11 A. Yes.
025503 12 cards, cofrect? o2s820 12 Q. And is that one still used today?
os50a. 13 A. Yes, we promote all of our products. sz 13 A. Yes. 7
ozss07 14 Q. And if you hadn't been seiling integrated cards, you still ozse23 14 Q. And Exhibits 7 and 8, refer to -- 8 is January 31, 97,
oss13 15 - would have been doing all of these same things from 1999 ozse3 18 and 7 Is July 30, 1997. You have those?
ozs5:15 16 forwérd, would you not? ozseas 16 A, Yes.
wssas 17 - A, In all probability, yes. ozss43 17 Q. And my dates are correct?
ozss27 18 Q. Okay. Thank you. ozseas 18 A. Yes.
ozs5:95 19 And you have no business records, do you, that break ozse4s 19 Q. And all of these Tamarack devices are still used today?
wssa0 20 down your advertising, marketing or the like, by reference to ozss0 20 A, Yes.
,‘.6.2.55:44 21  any particular product line; is that correct? ozsest 21 Q. And it's correct, isn't it, that your first use of the
025551 22  A. Could you say that -- we have the -- ozeess 22  first Tamarack product in May of '93 was for integrated labels
025555 23 Q. You haven't produced any records in this case that say, We 026902 23 - and not integrated cards, correct?
025558 24 - spent X dollars of advertising and marketing on integrated 02:56:05 24  A. Yes.
cards as opposed to all of our other products? 0250:08 25

Q. And each and every one of these purchases -- well, let me
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ozse1a 1 break it down, w0220 1 . wouldn't have had to purchase them.

025914 -2 Looking at the first line of PX 8, it indicates that o302 2 Q. No, I'm just focusing on the years --

025919 3 you acquired a Tarnarack label applicator, correct? o224 3 A, I know, but you're asking me hypotheticals that don't make
T ozs925 4 4 A. Yeah. ooz 4 sense. Iwouldn'topérate like that. I'm sorry. Idon't

ozso2s B Q. And similarly with Exhibit 9, the first line indicates 030233 D  mean to be argumentative, but ...

ozse30 - 6 that you acquired a Tamarack label applicator? o34 6 Q. Now, you also talked abouf some machines that you

ozseas 1 A. Yes. oxoz42 T bargained for down in Florida?

025043 8‘ Q.  And just looking at the second page of Exhibit 7, thek 030244 8. A. Yes.

ozse48 9 second entry is $25,000 for an integral Iabél die cut uhit, osozds 9 Q. FME.

ozsess 10 correct? 030246 10 Those are also used for integrated labels, aren't
“ozsess 11 A.' Yes. ozozs0 11 they?

025059 12 Q. Soit's correct, isn't it, that all of the Tamarack ozezs0 12 A. Yes.

oz0003 13 equipment that you bo'ught, beginning in May of 1993, has been osoz14 13 Q. Yod never would have gotten out of the business of

ozooor 14 constantly used since that time for the purpose of oz031s 14 integrated labels, would you?

oz00t0 185 manufacturing integrated labels? oz0320 15 A. Ihtegrated labels?

ozo01z 16 A. In addition to integrated cards, yes. ozos22 16 - Q. Right.

ozoo17 17 Q. And you don't have any records that would tell us how much ooz 17 A. Why would I?

03:00:25 187 of the time it's used for one product, that is labels, versus oxsze 18 Q. Well, that's hﬁy qﬁestion.

ozooa0 19 the other, that is the cards, do you? 030325 19 You wouldn't have done that, would you?

oz0oas 20 A. No. oxoszr 20 A, Ihtegrated labels?

o007 21 Q.. Okay. And -- os0326 21 Q. You wouldn't have gotten out of that business, would you?

030028 22 A. I'd have to -- no, I'd be guessing. 0z0333 22 A, I'm not sure if I understand the question. Integrated

oz0045 23 Q. And it's correct, isn't it, that in terms of revenue 030336 23 labels? No.

ozooso 24 generated for your company, the integrated label business is osoass 24 Q. Well, since 1996, has integrated labels been a profitable

wooss 25 far larger than the intégrated card business? ozezds 25 . category for you? . '
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oscos7 1 A. No. . os03s6 -1 A. We've done integrated labels prior to 1996,

ozoos7 2 Q. Or at least prior to 2006 it was? 030350 2 Q I understénd that.

osoto1 3 A. Did we do more integrated labels prior to 2006? 030351 3 A. Okay. A|I right.

ozotos 4 Q. Yeah. oz03si- 4 Q. But my question was trying to narrow it down a little bit,

o011 -5 A. Idon’t know for certain. I khow now that it's different. oxz0354 B - so maybe it was a little more clear. Let's just take the

osorte .6 Q. It's correct, isn't it, that prior to —-Vbet‘ween -~ let's oioas7 O years 2000 to 2006. ’

osot2a 7 take the years 2000 and 2006. If during that time you weren't 030400 7 During the years 2000 to 2006, have integrated labels

ozota0 8 making integrated cards, you still would have been making 0x0404 8 beena profitable product for you? ‘

030134 9 integrated labels with those same Tamarack machines? ozo408 -9 A, I--1 really don't know. .We don’t do them -- I assume

ozoize 10 A. From 2000 to 2006? ’ 030413 10 so, but I mean you're asking some questions that I can't

osora2 11 Q. Yes. 03017 11 answer specifically as far as the profitability of a specific

ozot44a 12 A. No, I think we were doing integrated cards then too. oz0az2 12 product fifteen years ago, eighteen years ago.

vzot46 13 Q. No. I'm sorry. I'm asking you a hypothetical. Let's oas 13 Q. Okay. Well, I did mean to limit it to the year 2000, and

ozotso 14.  assume -- osoem2 14 if I was --

03016 15 A. Oh, a hypothetical. ozo432 15 ~ A. Okay.

ozo151 16 Q. -- you weren't doing integrated cards. ox0433 16 Q. - unclear, I'm sorry.

oz01s5 17 On that assumption, you still would have been doing oxos3s 17 But does that help at all --

ozo1s8 18 integrated labels with those same Tamérack machines, wouldn't ozoa3s 18 A. I'm notsure if I understand the question.

ozozos 19  you? oz043s 19 Q. Iwanted to know if you made a profit on integrated labels

30205 20 ' A. No, I wouldn't have needed as much -- as much‘ equipment. | 03:04:43 20 from 2000 to 2006.

vzozos 21 Q.- But you would have been doing integrated labels on the ozokar 21 A, Idon't know.

0z0212- 22  same machiﬁes? ox0440 22 - Q. Okay. Can you think of any circumstances under which you

030213 23 A. No, I wouldn't have. ox0453 23  would have discontinued that line during the time period 2000

ox0z14 24 Q. You would have gotten rid of all four machines? 00458 24  to 20067

030217 25 A. Twouldn't have gotten them -- had them in the first -- 1 ozos04 25 A, No.
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ozoso8 . 1 Q. TI'd like to step back to the auction sale where your osoeza 1 Q. Well, at your ...
ozoste 2 brother's company -- the assets of your brother's company -- os0ezz 2 A. Isaw the patent --

030523 3 A. Oh, yeah. osoeze 3 Q. You testified --
“oaos2a 4 Q. -- the assets of your brother's two companies were sold. ozos0 4 A, Iheard ébout the patent, but -~
030520 B And you, I think, by reference to an exhibit put the ozoszz B Q. Lef me ask the question.
oxos3s B  date of that -- it's Exhibit 19 -- as October of 1997, oaeess 6 A, I'msorry. 7
030541 I correct? osees 7 Q. You testified this morning, if I understood correctly,
oa0s42 8 A. That's what this exhibit said, yes. o083 8 - that you did read the patent after this lawsuit was filed,
03:05:45 9' Q. And does that comport generally with your memory? ozomas 9 correct?
ozos40 10 A, I think so. oxoss0 10 A. Yes, I have.
oz0s52 11 Q. And what did you know about your brother's personal ozos4r 11 Q. And I believe you testified that you had never read it
oxoss6 12 status, financial status at that point in time? oz0845 12 - before that; is that correct?
ososs9 13 A. His personal finances? ozoe7 13 A. Idon't know if I testified to that or not.
saeor 14 Q. Right. osoaso 14 Q. Well, had you or not?
oz0s01 15 A. Nothing. His personal finances, nothing -- oh, wait a ozoest 18 A, I don't believe I had read it in its entirety.
03061116 minute. I had helped him a little bit and paid some bills for ox0854 16 Q. Well, had you read any part of it?
ozos21 17 him. oxosss 17 A. Yeah, and I had parts of it announced to me.
os0e2s 18 Q. You knew, in fact, that he had been forced to file oxosss 18 Q. When you say announced, what do you mean by that?
oaos30 19 personal bankruptey -- ox0z2 19 A. I mean at the auction, the auctioneer read the patent, the
oa05:30 20 A. I did not know that, os0z06 20  patent number, and said, Offered for sale, integrated card and
ozo630 21 Q. --in 19967 oz00:12 21  business formrassembly, and left it for fabricating on same on
030832 22 A. No, I did not know that. oz0sis' 22 label equipment formation. I read the patent.
030635 23 Q. You knew in 1997, at about the time his companies were 030020 23 Q. And your testimony this moment you were reading from
ososaa 24 - liquidated, that he had no financial capability to bring a 030023 24  Exhibit 1?
ns0e50 28 patent infringement case, didn't you? ososzs 25 A. Your Exhibit 1, yes.
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os0652 1. A. How would I know that? ozozze 1 Q. Okay. And notwithstanding that knowledge you continued
osoess 2 Q. Well, you knew his companies went bankrupt -- withdrawn, 03:0933 2 your production of integrated cards, correct?
ozor0r 3. A. Ididn't know that. ozoe3s 3 A: Yes.
ozor0a 4 Q. In any event, it's correct, isn't it, that you actually oxooa7 4 Q. And then when this lawsuit was filed in 2006, you did the
osor0s 5 - saw the letters patent at issue in our case today back on 030044 D very same thing, did you not? You continued production and
030714, 8  October 7th of 19977 ‘030048 O . sale of your integrated cards?
oxor16 7 . A, Did I see the patents are you asking me? oxees0 7 A. Yes, because he was -~ well, the simple thing is he was -~
ozor1s 8 Q. Yeah. 7 030955 8 he knew I was making integrated cards. He didn't sue me, so I
osor20 9 A, Yes. oiogss 9 assumed I'm perfectly fine. Last time he even suspected me of
osorz2 10 Q. And at least two times prior to that you had been told of 031003 10 anything, he sued me immediately.
osor2e 11 the existence of a patent that dealt with integrated cards, oa100s 11 Q. And when did you call your brother to ask him if it was
ozoras 12 correct? ozto10 12 perfectly fine with him? ‘
osoras 13 A, At least. ox1013 13 A. I never called him. I never called him. Why would I?
ozor40 14 Q. And you never took the trouble to inquire about what the oztozz 14 I'm sorry. I shouldn't ask questions. I'm sorry. 7
ozoras 15 patent covered, did you? ‘ -oz10:95 15 Q. A few more odds and énds, sir.
osor4s 16 A. I knew what it covered. I was told he had a patent on ozoar 16 A, Okay.
ozors2 17 - integrated cards. 031039 17 Q. And if I asked this earlier, I apologize.
osor5s 18 Q. So you went ahead with yoUr OWn -~ oxz1040 18 A. 1 won't remember.
ozorss 19 A, Iread the patent. oz042 19 Q. The first exhibit we talked about, the dart -- the Las

~ azosoo 20 - Q. You went ahead with your own production 6f integrated oz1050 20  Vegas dart brochure.
30802 21  cards from the beginning knowing that there was a patent and ozos1 21 A, Yes, yes.
oz0808 22  not reading it; is that correct? 03:10:56 22 Q. That does not have the name of your company USA/Docufinish
oade1z 23 - A. - I knew that he had a patent for integrated cards, yes. 0x1101 23 on it, does it?
ozoste 24 Q. And you hadn't read it, correct? o31106 24 A. No. Our name of our company would never appear on
ozos21 25 A, Had I read it in its entirety? I don't think so, no. ozit09 28  anything we manufacture.
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otz 1 Q. So that, for example, if someone had shown product samples o106 1 A. Iknow a guy named Stan Stack.
ox1122 2 of this product to your brother John, he wouldn't have seen o408 2 Q. Thank you for correcting me.
oz1128. 3 the name USA/Docufinish on there, would he? 031410 3 A. That's okay.

Tzias 4 A On this? - o4 4 Q. Thank you for listening carefully.

“oz1134 B Q. On any product sample. oz413 D And Sam -- Stan Stack is someone you've worked with
031136 0 - A. Well, yeah. If it were -- this is not a product sample. o417 O overa long number of years, isn't he?
031139 7 This is a live order. os1421 7 A. He's been a customer of ours. I've known Stack. I
omitar 8 Q. Okay. On any actual live product, he wouldn't see your 031426 - 8 don't -- I've seen Stack once in the last -- Stan Stack once
o31t4s 9 name? 031430 9  in the last twenty years maybe, but he's done business with my
oat146 10 A. On a live order he would not see our name. On our osie3s 10 company. '
oz1149 11 brochures and things, yes, he certainly would see our name. oz1a3s 11 Q. You saw him on October 7th, 1997, didn't you?
oxttss 12 Q. Now, do you have any basis to believe that your brother, ox1a0 12 A. I saw him at the auction, yes.
oz1tse 13 in fact, read any of these trade publications? sz 13 - Q. And you knew, from looking at the patent, that he had an
oz1204 14  A. Yes. 031444 14 interest in the patent?
o212 18 Q. When you were asked questions about the two letters back os4es 15 A. Yes.
oz1215 16 in 1996, '97, one written by your lawyer and the other one 031447 16 Q. Did you ever bother asking Stan Stack whether he would
oz1220 17 written by your brother, you very quickly said, Oh, my brother ox1ass 17 have any problem with your proceeding with your manufacture
031224 18  made a mistake. Why did you say that? 031500 18 and sale of integrated cards?
os1zzs 19 A. Why did I say what? oz1501 19 A, I would assume he didn’t, since we quoted them for him.
ox1z2s 20 Q. That your brother made a mistake on the date and look at ox1s06 20 Q. You didn't personally do that, did you?
ox1231 21 . all the other mistakes here. oxsos 21 A. One of my employees did.
oa1zas 22 A. 1don't think I've said that quickly, and I'd have to -- 031512 22 Q. You personally didn't?
oz1236 23  if I could read back what I said, it would refresh my memory, 031514 23 A. Idon’t personally -~
ox12as 24  because I don't remember exactly what I said. 031515 24 Q; -~ but you don't really know anything about the background
wiza1 25 Q. Let me ask you another question. 031519 25 of that quote, do you?
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oz12z45 - 1. A, Idon't think I was referring to any mistakes in here, was 0z1520 1 A, Iknow I can - and I'm not trying to be argumentative --
01248 2 I? 034524 2 compare it with a million other quotes we've done that's
031249 3 THE COURT: Why don't you show him that exhibit that 031527 3 identical.
oxizs1 4  we were referring to? 01 4 MR. SCHROER: If I could have just a moment, your
ozi2s5 5 BY MR. SCHROER: oxis’ 5 Honor?

031285 6 Q. Letme step away from that for just a moment and ask you a ogsaa O : THE COURT: Yes.
ox1266 7  more general question. ox1654 7  BY MR, SCHROER:
ox1300 8 A. Okay. o155 8 Q. Just a couple last questions; sir.
oz1z0z2 9 Q. You grew up with your brother in the same household, oxes7 9 Back in 1987 when you saw the patent at the --
031306 10  didn't you? gz1ros 10~ A, Not '87.
oxtaes 11 A. Yes. oz1rs 11 Q. 1997. Apologies.
oz1z0 12 Q.- And your split was after your business dispute before you o708 12 A, That's okay. *
03:13:15 13 _ started your own company, correct? ozir0e 13 Q. Did you make any effort to secure legal counsel to obtain
oa1318 14 A, We didn't have a business dispute. My brother fired oz1713 14 an opiﬁion on whether that might cover your process or
o1z 15 - several people, including my mother, my brother-in-law, some 031719 18 product?
031335 16 other people. It wasn't a dispute. wiido 16 A. At that time no. )
w2 17 Q. Are you aware of any'reading disabilities that your oztr2s 17 MR. SCHROER: That's all. - Thanks.
031334 18 brother has? oi72s 18 THE COURT: -Okay. Any redirect, Mr, Chu?
0z133s 19 A, I've seen him in his testimonies read intricate patent oz1730 19 MR. CHU: Thank you, your Honor. I'll be very, very
w1341 20 information trouble free, so I'm npf aware of any problems he oxra 20 Vbrief.
—oz1zas 21 has reading. =~ ox17:34 21 Your Honor, may I refer to new Defendant's
031347, 22 Q.v You're saying that from your childhood up you were never ox17:98 22 Exhibit 42, which is the Jast exhibit ln your book?
031350 23 awéfe of any reading problems that your brother had? 03:17:38. 23 --=
031353 24 A, No, absolutely not. da7ae 24 - STEPHEN MCCLUSKEY MCKILLIP, REDIRECT EXAMINATION
oaxtase 28 Q. Okay. You know a guy named Sam Stack? oz1738 25 - BY MR, CHU:
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